



CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND ANTI-BRIBERY POLICY

START DATE:	July 2022		NEXT REVIEW:	July 2025		
COMMITTEE	Audit and Risk	CHAIR'S S	GNATURE: Nick			
APPROVAL:	Committee	Gash				
	DATE : 20 July 2022					
	ENDORSED BY: Exec	utivo	DATE:			
	Management Board	ulive	20 July 2022			
	3		,			
DISTRIBUTION:	Trust-wide					
LOCATION:	Intranet: Trust Policie	s & Procedu	ires			
RELATED	EXTERNAL DOCUME	NTS				
DOCUMENTS:	Bribery Act 2010					
	Standards of Business	Conduct				
	Monitor Code of Governance HSC					
	1998/231					
	A Code of Conduct for Practice for NHS Consu		ice – Recommende	ed Standards of		
	Managing Conflicts of In Organisations NHS Eng			or staff and		
	INTERNAL DOCUMEN	ITS				
	Trust's Constitution					
	Counter Fraud Policy and Response Plan					
	Trust Standing Orders					
	Private Practice Policy					
	Policy for Counter Fraud and Corruption and Response Plan Policy Trust's					
	Private Practice Policy.					
	Trust Policy on fundraising					
	Trust policy on recognis	sing donors w	vithin the hospital e	estate		
AUTHOR / FURTHER INFORMATION:	Peter Jenkinson, Direct	or of Corpora	ate Governance an	d Compliance		

STAKEHOLDERS INVOLVED:

Chief Executive

All Directors

Non-Executive Directors

All Managers

All Staff

Council of Governors

DOCUMENT REVIEW HISTORY:

Date	Version	Responsibility	Comments
2 nd March 2012	1	Director of Human Resources	New Policy in this format – replaces conflict of interest policy which also included hospitality.
6 September 2013	2	Director of Corporate Affairs and Company Secretary	Job titles updated.
February 2015	3	Foundation Trust Secretary	New combined Policy in this format.
June 2016	4	Deputy Director of Corporate Affairs	Minor amendments to format (removing duplication) and job titles
January 2018	5	Interim Board Secretary	Incorporates NHSE Guidance
January 2021	5	Director of Corporate Governance & Compliance	
July 2022	6	Interim Deputy Director of Corporate Governance and Compliance	Changes the definition of decision making staff from 8A and above to 8D and above in accordance with the NHSE/I Model Policy Includes the requirement and process for declaration of third party interests Appendix D: Includes four declaration forms
June 2023	7	Director of Corporate Governance and Compliance	Minor amendments to include online portal
November 2023	8	Deputy Director of Corporate Governance	Recommendations made by Local Counter Fraud Specialist included - sections 7.1.1, 7.1.4 , 9.2.6, 12.1.1, 12.3.1 and a new section on links with private companies (12.13). Reference to Trust's online declaration portal included - Chelsea and Westminster Hospital (mydeclarations.co.uk)
DATE EXPIRI	ĖS	July 2025	

CONTENTS

		Page
1	SUMMARY: DOs AND DON'Ts	4
2	INTRODUCTION & PURPOSE	5
3	SCOPE	5
4	DEFINITIONS	6
5	BOARD OF DIRECTORS	7
6	COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS	7
7	PROCUREMENT	8
8	PHARMACY	8
9	ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	8
10	INTERESTS	10
11	MANAGEMENT OF INTERESTS – GENERAL	11
12	MANAGEMENT OF INTERESTS – COMMON SITUTATIONS	13
	12.1 Gifts	13
	12.2 Hospitality	14
	12.3 Outside employment	15
	12.4 Shareholdings and other ownership issues	15
	12.5 Patents	16
	12.6 Loyalty Interests	17
	12.7 Related Party Transactions	17
	12.8 Donations	18
	12.9 Sponsored events	19
	12.10 Sponsored Research	19
	12.11 Sponsored posts	20
	12.12 Clinical private practice	20
13	MANAGEMENT OF INTERESTS – ADVICE IN SPECIFIC CONTEXTS	21
14	DEALING WITH BREACHES	22
15	COMMUNICATION	23
16	MONITORING OF THIS POLICY	24
17	REVIEW	24
18	REFERENCES	24
	APPENDIX A: EXAMPLES OF POTENTIAL CONFLICTS	26
	APPENDIX B: EXAMPLES OF BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION	27
	APPENDIX C: EXAMPLES OF WHAT STAFF SHOULD NOT DO	28
	APPENDIX D: DECLARATION FORMS	

CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS AND ANTI-BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION POLICY

1 SUMMARY: DOs AND DON'Ts

DO:

- Make sure you are aware of this Policy and follow it.
- Make sure if you are responsible for any staff that you understand the Policy, that your staff are made aware of this Policy and where to find it and apply it in your area.
- Make sure if you are a board director, other director, senior manager or divisional clinical director, consultant, or work in finance, procurement, pharmacy, IT, estates or facilities or capital investment that you have a good working knowledge of the policy and follow it.
- Make sure you seek advice from your line manager in the first instance if you are not sure about the guidance in this policy.
- Make sure that you (and your staff) are not put in a position where personal interests may come into conflict with Trust duties.
- Use your common sense and judgement to consider whether the interests you have could affect the way taxpayers' money is spent.
- Regularly consider what interests you have and declare these as they arise. If in doubt, declare.
- Declare any relevant interests, and if in doubt, ask **yourself** the following questions:
 - Am I, or might I be in a position where I or my family or friends could gain from the connection between my private interests and my employment?
 - > Do I have access to information, or contact with individuals, which could influence purchasing decision?
 - Could my outside interests be in any way detrimental to the NHS, the Trust, or to patients' interests?
 - Do I have any reason to think I may be risking a conflict of interest?

If after asking these questions you are still unsure – Declare it!

- Inform **your** line manager if you take on outside work.
- Raise any concern you may have in relation to fraud or potential bribery offences.

DON'T:

- Misuse your position to further your own interests or those close to you.
- Be influenced, or give the impression that you have been influenced by, outside interests.

 Allow outside interests you have to inappropriately affect the decisions you make when using taxpayers' money.

2 INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

- 2.1 This document sets out the Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (the 'Trust') policy and advice to staff, and individuals working for the Trust, in dealing with potential conflicts of interests, the acceptance of gifts, hospitality, sponsorship and bribery and corruption. This policy details the arrangements made in the Trust for such concerns to be raised by all staff and members of the public.
- 2.2 The Trust has a duty to ensure that all its dealings are conducted to the highest standards of integrity and probity and that its staff, agents, contractors and others, when acting for the Trust in their official capacity, meet these standards.
- 2.3 This policy aims to ensure that individuals covered by the policy are aware that they must take decisions free from any potential or real situations of undue bias or influence in the decision-making of the Trust.
- 2.4 This policy sets out the standards of conduct expected of all staff where their private interests might conflict with their duties as an employee and the steps the Trust has taken to safeguard itself against potential conflicts of interest.
- 2.5 Conflicts of interest may arise where an individual's personal, or a connected person's interests and/or loyalties conflict with those of the Trust. The aim of this policy is to protect the Trust and the individuals from any appearance of impropriety which may be a risk to its reputation or a breach of the Bribery Act 2010.
- 2.6 The acceptance of gifts, hospitality, preferential treatment in private transactions, sponsorship or loyalty schemes as an incentive for entering into business transactions is specifically prohibited by the Trust as defined by the Bribery Act 2010.
- 2.7 Gifts, hospitality and sponsorship offered where there is no possibility that their acceptance could act as an incentive to act dishonestly, or in breach of the law, will not constitute a bribe, but may still need to be refused.
- 2.8 This policy gives instructions to staff about what to do, and whom to contact if they have any fraud related concerns or conflicts of interest or are in receipt of gifts, hospitality and sponsorship and that these are appropriately declared, recorded and monitored.
- 2.9 The policy also defines bribery and corruption and gives instruction to staff about what to do, and whom to contact if they have any fraud related concerns.
- 2.10 This policy replaces and rescinds all previous Trust policies dealing with the same policy issues.

3 SCOPE

The Scope of this policy is as follows:

3.1 This policy must be adhered to by all staff, volunteers, Non-Executive Directors and Governors.

- 3.2 This includes individuals who are:
 - employed under a contract of employment with the Trust;
 - unpaid volunteers of the Trust including Governors;
 employed under an honorary contract with the Trust;
 contracted under third parties (including agency staff); and
 - not employed by the Trust but who exercise functions on behalf of e.g. non-NHS contract staff;
- 3.3 This policy does not replace or substitute any professional or other codes of conduct that members of staff or individuals connected with the Trust are obliged to follow.

4 DEFINITIONS

The terms in use in this document are defined as follows:

- **4.1 Conflicts of interest** (see section 12)
- 4.1.1 A 'conflict of interest' is:

"A set of circumstances by which a reasonable person would consider that an individual's ability to apply judgement or act, in the context of delivering, commissioning, or assuring taxpayer funded health and care services is, or could be, impaired or influenced by another interest they hold."

A conflict of interest may be:

- Actual there is a material conflict between one or more interests; and/or
- Potential there is the possibility of a material conflict between one or more interests in the future
- 4.1.2 Staff may hold interests for which they cannot see potential conflict. However, caution is always advisable because others may see it differently and perceived conflicts of interest can be damaging. All interests should be declared where there is a risk of perceived improper conduct.

4.2 Bribery

4.2.1 Bribery is promising, offering, or giving someone a financial or other advantage to encourage that person to perform their functions or activities improperly in order to gain an advantage (commercial, regulatory, personal) or to reward a person for the improper performance of a relevant function or activity.

4.3 Corruption

4.3.1 This can be broadly defined as the offering or acceptance of inducements, gifts, favours, payment or benefit-in-kind which may influence the action of any person. Further guidance on countering corruption and fraud can be found in the Trust's "Policy for Counter Fraud and Corruption and Response Plan Policy."

4.4. Staff

- 4.4.1 At Chelwest we use the skills of many different people, all of whom are vital to our work. This includes people on differing employment terms, who for the purposes of this policy we refer to as 'staff', a non-exhaustive list of whom is:
 - All salaried employees;
 - All prospective employees who are part way through recruitment;
 - · Contractors and sub-contractors;
 - Agency staff/Bank Staff;
 - Committee, sub-committee and advisory group members (who may not be directly employed or engaged by the Trust); and volunteers

4.5 Decision making staff

- 4.5.1 Some staff are more likely than others to have a decision making influence on the use of taxpayers' money, because of the requirements of their role. These people are referred to as 'decision making staff' in this Policy.
- 4.5.2 In addition to the general responsibilities placed upon all staff to declare their interests, there are distinct guidelines that apply to the decision making staff:
- 4.5.3 Decision making staff in the Trust include:
 - Board of Directors and Council of Governors:
 - All at Agenda for Change band 8D and above;
 - All Finance, Pharmacy and Procurement administrative and clinical staff who have the power to enter into contracts on behalf of the Trust; and
 - All Finance, Pharmacy and Procurement administrative and clinical staff involved in decision making concerning the purchasing of goods, medicines, medical devices or equipment, and formulary decisions.
- 4.5.4 Decision making staff are required to make an annual submission of interests and submit a nil return if they have not had any interests within the year. The Trust will ensure compliance with annual declarations from decision making staff in the annual appraisal process, including a nil return. However, all staff, and decision making staff in particular, should review declarations they have made and, as appropriate, update them or make a nil return throughout the year.
- 4.5.5 An online portal and/or a form are available at Appendix D and on the Trust intranet site. Declarations of decision making staff must be published annually unless exceptional circumstances apply.

5 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 5.1 In addition to this Policy, members of the Trust Board are required to declare interests which are relevant to the Trust Board, Committee or Group of which they are a member, as stated in:
 - The Code of Conduct: Code of Accountability in the NHS;
 - The Trust's Constitution; and
 - The Standing Orders to the Trust's Constitution.

A register of all board member interests will be kept and maintained by the Board Governance Manager and will be reviewed by the Trust Board on an annual basis. Interests, however, should be declared as and when they arise, including at the start of all relevant meetings and committees, and not only as a result of this annual declaration.

6 COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS

6.1 In addition to this Policy, members of the Council of Governors are required to declare interests which are relevant to the Trust Council of Governors, Committee or Group of which they are a member as stated in:

The Code of Conduct: Code of Accountability in the NHS;

The Trust's Constitution; and

The Standing Orders to the Trust's Constitution.

6.2 A register of all of Governors' interests will be kept and maintained by the Board Governance Manager and will be reviewed by the Trust Board on an annual basis. Interests, however, should be declared as and when they arise, including at the start of all relevant meetings and committees, and not only as a result of this annual declaration.

7 PROCUREMENT

- 7.1 In addition to the main content of this Policy, the following applies to procurement staff:
- 7.1.1. Procurement should be managed in an open and transparent manner, compliant with procurement and other relevant law, to ensure there is no discrimination against or in favour of any provider. Procurement processes should be conducted in a manner that does not constitute anti-competitive behaviour which is against the interest of patients and the public.
- 7.1.2. All staff who participate in tender evaluation panels will be required to make a declaration of interest prior to the commencement of a tender exercise this will include staff who have previously declared an interest. This declaration process will be managed by the procurement department. All declarations will be recorded in the tender project file even if no relevant interests are declared.
- 7.1.3 Any panel member who feels that their personal knowledge, dealings or interests of a tendering organisation would compromise their objectivity should declare this interest to the person leading the tender and withdraw from the tender evaluation process.
- 7.1.4. Where it is the opinion of the panel chair that it would be in the interest of the Trust to involve the panel member in the tender evaluation process because of their expertise, the extent of their involvement must be recorded in the tender project file notes as an addendum to the Declaration of Interest Form. If the panel chair has any concerns about the involvement of an individual in the tender evaluation process they should seek advice from their procurement representative. If a staff/panel member fails to declare an interest which requires their withdrawal from the tender evaluation process, they will be subject to investigation by the Local Counter Fraud Service.
- 7.1.5 If the previous knowledge or interest is between the panel chair and a tendering organisation, this should be raised with the panel and procurement representative. If it is considered by the panel to be material, the member should stand down as chair of the panel and a record made in the tender project file notes as an addendum to the Declaration of Interest Form.

7.1.6 Commercial sponsorship would generally preclude an individual from taking part in a tender panel if the sponsoring organisation were involved. However, where if in the opinion of the Head of Procurement it would be in the interest of the Trust to waive this rule (for example to obtain the individual's particular expertise) the Head of Procurement will seek agreement of the Chief Financial Officer. This decision will be recorded in the tender project file.

8 PHARMACY

8.1 In addition to the main content of this Policy, the following applies to pharmacy staff:

Staff who present applications for additions to the formulary are required to make a declaration of interest as part of that process. All members of the Medicines Safety Committee are asked to make a declaration of interest each time an application is considered by the Committee. All declarations are recorded in the minutes of the meeting even if no relevant interest is declared.

9 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

9.1 The Trust

- 9.1.1 The Trust has a duty to ensure that it provides a secure environment in which to work, and one where people are confident to raise concerns without worrying that it will reflect badly on them. This extends to ensuring that staff feel protected when carrying out their official duties and are not placed in a vulnerable position. If staff have concerns about any procedures or processes that they are asked to be involved in, the Trust has a duty to ensure that those concerns are listened to and addressed.
- 9.1.2. The Board may be called to account for failing to prevent bribery. The Trust therefore has a duty to ensure employees receive adequate training and support in order to carry out their responsibilities. The Company Secretary in conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer will monitor and ensure compliance with this policy on behalf of the Board as the designated Compliance Officer.

9.2 The Trust Managers

- 9.2.1 The Chief Financial Officer manages the Local Counter Fraud Services and internal audit; is responsible for agreeing counter fraud work and the internal audit plan, and is a source of advice on the value of the gift and any aspects of the policy.
- 9.2.2 The Company Secretary is responsible for overseeing the policy and maintaining the Register of Conflicts of Interest.
- 9.2.3 The Trust Governance Officers are responsible for collating the Declarations of Interest.
- 9.2.4 Managers are responsible for confirming, to the satisfaction of the Company Secretary, where conflicts of interest do not in fact arise after a Declaration of Conflict of Interest has been made
- 9.2.5 Managers at all levels have a responsibility to ensure that an adequate system of internal control exists within their areas of responsibility and that controls operate effectively. The responsibility for the prevention and detection of bribery therefore primarily rests with managers but requires the co-operation of all staff.
- 9.2.6 Managers should be mindful of interpersonal relationships with the Trust workforce, and ensure that no favouritism/nepotism can occur. Any personal relationships should be

declared. Managers may not authorise anything (whether for pay/non-pay purposes) for anyone to whom they are currently/have been previously related to, in a romantic relationship with, or have resided at the same address as.

- 9.2.7 As part of that responsibility, line managers need to:
 - Inform staff of the Trust's relevant policies as part of their induction process, paying particular attention to the need for accurate completion of personal records and forms;
 - Ensure that decision making staff provide a declaration in all relevant categories annually as part of their appraisal process;
 - Ensure that all staff for whom they are accountable are made aware of the requirements of the policies and of this Policy in particular;
 - Assess the types of risk involved in the operations for which they are responsible;
 - Ensure that adequate control measures are put in place to minimise the risks. This must
 include clear roles and responsibilities, supervisory checks, staff rotation (particularly in
 key posts), separation of duties wherever possible so that control of a key function is
 not invested in one individual, and regular reviews, reconciliations and test checks to
 ensure that control measures continue to operate effectively;
 - Be aware of the Trust's Policy for Counter Fraud and Corruption and Response Plan Policy;
 - Identify sensitive/at-risk posts;
 - Ensure that controls are being complied with; and
 - Contribute to their Director's assessment of the risks and controls within their business area, which feeds into the Trust's and the Department of Health Accounting Officer's overall statements of accountability and internal control.
- 9.2.8 All instances of actual or suspected bribery, which come to the attention of a manager, must be reported immediately. It is appreciated that some staff will initially raise concerns with their manager, however, in such cases managers must not attempt to investigate the allegation themselves, and they have the clear responsibility to refer the concerns to the Chief Financial Officer and/or the Local Counter Fraud Specialist as soon as possible.

9.3 Staff

- 9.3.1 All staff are responsible for following this policy and the allowances detailed, and, for declining or referring a gift/hospitality of any value if they have any concern about the reason it is being given.
- 9.3.2 It is expected that Board Directors and staff at all levels will lead by example in acting with the utmost integrity and ensuring adherence to all relevant regulations, policies and procedures.
- 9.3.4 Staff who are involved in receiving offers of sponsorship, funding or gifts from third parties or outside agencies also should comply with their own professional codes of practice. Professional staff must also make themselves aware of their own professional body codes of conduct e.g. Nursing and Midwifery Council, General Medical Council, professional, legal, accounting and other bodies.
- 9.3.5 Examples of what may indicate bribery or corruption are set out in appendix C. Examples of what staff should not do are set out within appendix D.

9.4 Local Counter Fraud Specialist

- 9.4.1. The Local Counter Fraud Specialist is responsible for investigating any breaches of this policy which may suggest impropriety and bribery. They will carry out periodic reviews of declarations to ensure policy is being adhered to and that management action taken in relation to declarations is appropriate.
- 9.4.2 The Directions to NHS Bodies on Counter Fraud Measures 2004 or Clause 43 and Schedule 13 of the Standard NHS Contract for Acute Services require the Trust to appoint and nominate a Local Counter Fraud Specialist. The Local Counter Fraud Specialist's role is to ensure that all cases of actual or suspected bribery and corruption are notified to the Chief Financial Officer and reported accordingly.
- 9.4.3 The Local Counter Fraud Specialist and the Chief Financial Officer, in conjunction with NHS Counter Fraud Authority (NHSCFA) Protect where relevant, will decide who will conduct the investigation and when/if referral to the police is required. Cases, where possible bribery/corruption is involved may be investigated by NHSCFA Protect themselves (though the Local Counter Fraud Specialist may assist), otherwise the investigation will normally be undertaken by the Trust's own Local Counter Fraud Specialist directly (RSM UK Risk Assurance Services LLD on 020 3201 8000).

9.5 Internal and External Audit

The Trust and/or our auditors will conduct an annual review of compliance with this policy. Any incident or suspicion that comes to (Internal or External) Audit's attention will be passed immediately to the Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS).

10 INTERESTS

- **10.1 Identification and declaration of interests (including gifts and hospitality).** Interests fall into the following categories:
 - Financial interests: Where an individual may get direct financial benefit from the consequences of a decision they are involved in making;
 - Non-financial professional interests: Where an individual may obtain a non-financial
 professional benefit from the consequences of a decision they are involved in making,
 such as increasing their professional reputation or promoting their professional career;
 - Non-financial personal interests: Where an individual may benefit personally in ways
 which are not directly linked to their professional career and do not give rise to a direct
 financial benefit, because of decisions they are involved in making in their professional
 career; and/or
 - Indirect interests: Where an individual has a close association with another individual
 who has a financial interest, a non-financial professional interest or a non-financial
 personal interest and could stand to benefit from a decision they are involved in making.

10.2 Declaration.

- 10.2.1 All staff should identify and declare material interests at the earliest opportunity (and in any event within 28 days). If staff are in any doubt as to whether an interest is material then they should declare it, so that it can be considered.
- 10.2.2 Declarations should be made:
- On appointment with the Trust;

- When staff move to a new role or their responsibilities change significantly;
- At the beginning of a new project/piece of work;
- As soon as circumstances change and new interests arise (for instance, in a meeting when interests staff hold are relevant to the matters in discussion);and
- For decision making staff, as a conflict arises and at least annually as part of the Trust appraisal process.
- 10.2.3 After expiry, an interest will remain on register(s) for a minimum of 6 months and a private record of historic interests will be retained for a minimum of 6 years.

11 MANAGEMENT OF INTERESTS – GENERAL

- All staff should ensure that they are not placed in a position that risks, or appears to risk, compromising their role or the Trust's public and statutory duties or reputation. Staff must not, or be perceived to, secure valuable gifts or hospitality by virtue of their role within the Trust. The Bribery Act 2010 makes it a criminal offence to give or offer a bribe, or to request, offer or receive or accept a bribe. The Act reformed the criminal law of bribery, making it easier to tackle this offence proactively in both the public and private sectors. It introduced a corporate offence which means that commercial organisations, including NHS bodies, will be exposed to criminal liability, punishable by an unlimited fine, for failing to prevent bribery.
- 11.2 If an interest is declared but there is no risk of a conflict arising then no action is warranted. However, if a material interest is declared then the general management actions that could be applied include:
 - Restricting staff involvement in associated discussions and excluding them from decision making;
 - Removing staff from the whole decision making process;
 - Removing staff responsibility for an entire area of work; and/or
 - Removing staff from their role altogether if they are unable to operate effectively in it because the conflict is so significant.

Each case will be different and context-specific, and the Trust will always clarify the circumstances and issues with the individuals involved. Staff should maintain a written audit trail of information considered and actions taken.

- 11.3 Staff who declare material interests should make their line manager or the person(s) they are working to aware of their existence.
- 11.4 Managers can contact the Company Secretary for further advice regarding appropriate management actions.
- 11.5 Staff can raise a dispute (with the Company Secretary) against a management action which their line manager has implemented, should they wish to.

12 MANAGEMENT OF INTERESTS – COMMON SITUATIONS

12.1 Gifts

- **12.1.1** A 'gift' is defined by NHS England as any item of cash or goods, or any service, which is provided for personal benefit, free of charge or at less than its commercial value.
- 12.1.2 Staff should not ask for any gifts and should not accept gifts that may affect, or be seen to affect, their professional judgement.
- 12.1.3 The following gifts must be politely but firmly declined:
 - Gifts from suppliers or contractors doing business (or likely to do business) with the Trust;
 - Gifts from other sources (such as patients, families) of cash or vouchers;
 - Multiple gifts from the same source (or a closely related source) over a rolling 12 month period once the cumulative value exceeds £50.
- 12.1.4 The following gifts may be accepted and do not need to be declared:
 - From suppliers, low cost branded promotional aids such as pens or post-it notes may be accepted where they are under the value of £6 in total; and
 - Small tokens of gratitude (e.g. chocolates) from patients or from their relatives.
 - Modest gifts under a value of £50. (A common sense approach should be applied to the valuing of gifts)
- 12.1.5 The following gifts may be accepted and must be declared:
 - Multiple gifts from the same source (or a closely related source) over a rolling 12 month period that have a cumulative or individual value that does not exceed £50;
 - Where a gift has been accepted (for whatever reason) that does not fall into the exceptions detailed above;
 - Where the staff member is unsure whether a gift should or should not be declared;
- 12.1.6 Where a member of staff has been left something in a patient's will, the above principles should be applied.
- 12.1.7 A common sense approach should be applied to the valuing of gifts (using an actual amount, if known, or an estimate that a reasonable person would make as to its value).
- 12.1.8 All gifts outside of these definitions must be declined, or accepted only if permission is given by the Company Secretary, and in any event declared.
- 12.1.9 In all cases, if any doubt exists, employees should either consult their line manager or politely decline the gift.
- 12.1.10 What should be declared?
 - Staff name and their role with the Trust;
 - A description of the nature and value of the gift, including its source;
 - Date of receipt; and
 - Any other relevant information (e.g. circumstances surrounding the gift, action taken to mitigate against a conflict, details of any approvals given to depart from the terms of this policy).

12.2 Hospitality

- 12.2.1 Hospitality, is defined by NHS England, means offers of meals, refreshment, travel, accommodation and other expenses in relation to attendance at meetings, conference, education and training events.
- 12.2.2 Staff should not ask for or accept hospitality that may affect, or be seen to affect, their professional judgement.
- 12.2.3 In cases of uncertainty, employees should consult their line manager. If doubt still exists, then the hospitality received should be declared.
- 12.2.4 The following hospitality may be accepted and does not need to be declared, provided that there is a legitimate business reason and it is proportionate to the nature and purpose of the event:
 - Meals and refreshments under a value of £25:
- 12.2.5 The following hospitality may be accepted, provided that there is a legitimate business reason and it is proportionate to the nature and purpose of the event, and must be declared (Particular caution should be exercised when hospitality is offered by actual or potential suppliers or contractors. This can be accepted, and must be declared, if modest and reasonable. Senior approval must be obtained):
 - Meals and refreshments of a value between £25 and £75; and
 - Modest offers to pay travel and accommodation related to attendance at events
 - Meals and refreshments over a value of £75 should be refused unless in exceptional circumstances senior approval is given. In such cases a clear reason as to why it was permissible to accept such hospitality must be records on the organisation's hospitality register.
- 12.2.6 The following hospitality may not be accepted and must be declared:
 - Offers of business class or first class travel and accommodation (including domestic travel); and
 - Offers of foreign travel and accommodation.

12.2.7 What should be declared?

- · Staff name and their role with the Trust;
- A description of the nature and value of the hospitality including its circumstances;
- · Date of receipt; and
- Any other relevant information (e.g. circumstances surrounding the gift, action taken to mitigate against a conflict, details of any approvals given to depart from the terms of this policy).

12.3 Outside employment

12.3.1 Employees must declare any existing outside employment on appointment and any new outside employment as and when it arises. This must be declared to their line managers (and ensuring HR are aware) and either completing the Trust's online portal service or in writing by completing the Declaration of Interest form and returning it to chelwest.declarations@nhs.net mailbox.

- 12.3.2 Failure to declare any secondary employment will be dealt with under the disciplinary policy and may result in disciplinary action.
- 12.3.3 Staff are advised not to engage in outside employment that may conflict with Trust business, or be harmful to it. Staff must advise their line manager, if they think they may be in, or about to place themselves in, a situation giving rise to a conflict of interest in this area. It is impossible to give a complete list of outside employment that may conflict with Trust work. However, it includes activities that cause concern with regard to health or safety at work or breach of the European Working Time Directive. For example, being overly tired due to excessive hours of work, or bringing the Trust into disrepute, or, harming the public's confidence in the Trust and its services.
- 12.3.4 If it comes to the attention of a line manager that an individual is undertaking work outside the Trust and the manager thinks there may be a conflict of interest, health and safety implications or breach of the European Working Time Directive, they will discuss the situation with the employee with a view to ensuring that there are no risks to the individual, their colleagues, patient's or the Trust's interests. Where a potential risk is identified, a risk assessment will be conducted.
- 12.3.5 If the manager thinks that a risk does exist and a solution cannot be reached in discussion with the individual, the appropriate General Manager with advice from Human Resources (HR), will be responsible for judging whether there are Health and Safety risks or the interest of patients could be harmed, or any other conflict of interest might arise.

12.3.6 What should be declared?

- Staff name and their role with the Trust;
- The nature of the outside employment (e.g. who it is with, a description of duties, time commitment); and
- · Relevant dates.

12.4 Shareholdings and other ownership issues

- 12.4.1 Staff should declare, as a minimum, any shareholdings and other ownership interests in any publicly listed, private or not-for-profit company, business, partnership or consultancy which is doing, or might be reasonably expected to do, business with the Trust.
- 12.4.2 Where shareholdings or other ownership interests are declared and give rise to risk of conflicts of interest, then the general management actions outlined in this policy should be considered and applied to mitigate risks.
- 12.4.3 There is no need to declare shares or securities held in collective investment or pension funds or units of authorised unit trusts.

12.4.4 What should be declared?

- Staff name and their role with the Trust;
- Nature of the shareholdings/other ownership interest;
- Relevant dates; and
- Other relevant information (e.g. action taken to mitigate against a conflict, details of any approvals given to depart from the terms of this policy).

12.5 Patents

- 12.5.1 The Trust must ensure that it is in a position to identify potential intellectual property rights, as and when they arise, so that the Trust can protect and exploit them properly, and thereby ensure that they receive any rewards or benefits (such as royalties) in respect of work commissioned from third parties, or work carried out by their employees in the course of their NHS duties. Most potential intellectual property rights are protected under the Patents Act 1977 and copyright (which includes software programmes) under the Copyright Designs and Patents Act 1988.
- 12.5.2 Staff should declare patents and other intellectual property rights they hold (either individually, or by virtue of their association with a commercial or other organisation), including where applications to protect have started or are on-going, which are, or might be reasonably expected to be, related to items to be procured or used by the Trust.
- 12.5.3 Staff should build appropriate specifications and provisions into the contractual arrangements, which they enter into before the work is commissioned, or begins. Staff should always seek legal advice if in any doubt in specific cases.
- 12.5.4 Staff should seek prior permission from the Trust before entering into any agreement with bodies regarding product development, research, work on pathways etc, where this impacts on the Trust's own time, or uses its equipment, resources or intellectual property.
- 12.5.5 Where holding of patents' and other intellectual property rights give rise to a conflict of interest then the general management actions outlined in this policy should be considered and applied to mitigate risks.
- 12.5.6 In the case of collaborative research and evaluative exercises with manufacturers, the Trust should obtain a fair reward for the input provided. If such an exercise involves additional work for an NHS employee outside that paid for by the Trust under his or her Contract of Employment, arrangements should be made for some share of any rewards or benefits to be passed on to the employees concerned from the collaborating parties. Care should however be taken that involvement in this type of arrangement with a manufacturer does not influence the purchase of other supplies from that manufacturer.

12.5.7 What should be declared?

- Staff name and their role with the Trust:
- · A description of the patent; and
- Relevant dates.
- Other relevant information (e.g. action taken to mitigate against a conflict, details of any approvals given to depart from the terms of this policy).

12.6 Loyalty interests

- 12.6.1 Loyalty interests should be declared by decision making staff where they:
 - Hold a position of authority in another NHS organisation or commercial, charity, voluntary, professional, statutory or other body which could be seen to influence decisions they take in their NHS role;
 - Sit on advisory groups or other paid or unpaid decision making forums that can influence how a Trust spends taxpayers' money;

- Are, or could be, involved in the recruitment or management of close family members and relatives, close friends and associates, and business partners; or
- Are aware that their Trust does business with an organisation in which close family members and relatives, close friends and associates, and business partners have decision making responsibilities.

12.6.2 What should be declared?

- · Staff name and their role with the Trust;
- Nature of the loyalty interest;
- · Relevant dates; and
- Other relevant information (e.g. action taken to mitigate against a conflict, details of any approvals given to depart from the terms of this policy).

12.7 Related Party Transactions – Statement to be added as new section to Policy

Related party relationships and transactions with such parties are an integral part of the day to day business of the Trust. Users of the Trust's financial statements are likely to be interested in the existence of these relationships and in the transactions or commitments with such parties when they assess the operations and financial performance of the Trust and any potential impact that a related party relationship may have had in achieving the Trust's financial position.

Where there has been a transaction with the related party, the Trust will disclose the nature of the related party relationship as well as information about the transactions and outstanding balances necessary for an understanding of the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.

A related party transaction could take place if that person meets any of the following criteria:

- Has control or joint control over the organisation the Trust is doing business with
- Has significant influence over that organisation
- Is a member of the key management personnel of that organisation or its parent organisation

Directors of the Trust, or a member of their close family, who hold a controlling interest in an entity transacting business with this Trust, or with any other Trust, CCG or Local Authority that this Trust has material interests with, irrespective of whether a price was charged must declare this interest. A controlling interest can come about as a result of controlling 20% or more of voting rights or by being a Senior Manager controlling the major activities and resources of the organisation transacting business.

Definition and Identification of a Related Party

Key management personnel:

It will include persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including all directors (whether executive or otherwise).

Related Party:

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements. It could be a person or close member of that person's family.

Related party transactions:

A related party transaction is defined as a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charge. This could cover the following types of transactions:

- Purchase or sales of goods, property or other assets
- Providing or receiving of services
- · Providing guarantees or collateral
- · Settlement of liabilities by the entity for another party

It is the responsibility of all employees and non-executive directors to submit a Declaration of Interests form on joining the Trust and to submit any variations on an annual basis. The declarations are recorded in the Trust's Register of Interests. In addition, key management personnel only are required as a result of the Related Party Disclosure policy to submit, within two weeks of the end of the financial year, a declaration of related parties which includes, where relevant, a list of related party transactions that have occurred during the financial year. The declaration form contains two statements, one to declare no knowledge of a related party transaction and the other to make a declaration of a related party transaction. A list of all returns will be kept for auditing and financial purposes by the Company Secretary.

12.8 Donations

- 12.8.1 Donations made by suppliers or bodies seeking to do business with the Trust should be treated with caution and not routinely accepted. In exceptional circumstances they may be accepted but should always be declared. A clear reason should be recorded as to why it was deemed acceptable, alongside the actual or estimated value.
- 12.8.2 Staff should not actively solicit charitable donations unless this is a prescribed or expected part of their duties for the Trust.
- 12.8.3 Staff may never solicit charitable donations for personal gain.
- 12.8.4 Staff may refer enquiries from those wishing to make donations to CW+.
- 12.8.5 Donations must comply with the Trust Policy on Fundraising and the Trust policy on recognising donors within the hospital estate.
- 12.8.6 Staff must obtain permission from the Trust (line manager) if in their professional role they intend to undertake fundraising activities on behalf of a preapproved charitable campaign for a charity other than CW+
- 12.8.7 Donations, when received, should be transferred to CW+ (never to an individual) and a receipt should be issued.

12.8.8 Staff wishing to make a donation to a charitable fund in lieu of receiving a professional fee may do so, subject to ensuring that they take personal responsibility for ensuring that any tax liabilities related to such donations are properly discharged and accounted for.

12.8.9 What should be declared:

 The Trust will maintain records in line with the above principles and rules and relevant obligations under charity law.

12.9 Sponsored events

- 12.9.1 Sponsorship of events by appropriate external bodies will only be approved if a reasonable person would conclude that the event will result in a clear benefit to the Trust and the NHS.
- 12.9.2 During dealings with sponsors there must be no breach of patient or individual confidentiality or data protection rules and legislation.
- 12.9.3 No information should be supplied to the sponsor from whom they could gain a commercial advantage, and information which is not in the public domain should not normally be supplied.
- 12.9.4 At the Trust's discretion, sponsors or their representatives may attend or take part in the event but they should not have a dominant influence over the content or the main purpose of the event.
- 12.9.5 The involvement of a sponsor in an event should always be clearly identified.
- 12.9.6 Staff within the Trust involved in securing sponsorship of events should make it clear that sponsorship does not equate to endorsement of a company or its products and this should be made visibly clear on any promotional or other materials relating to the event.
- 12.9.7 Staff arranging sponsored events must declare this to the Trust.
- 12.9.8 What should be declared:
 - The Trust will maintain records regarding sponsored events in line with the above principles and rules.

12.10 Sponsored research

- 12.10.1 Funding sources for research purposes must be transparent.
- 12.10.2 Any proposed research must go through the relevant health research authority or other approvals process.
- 12.10.3 There must be a written protocol and written contract between staff, the organisation, and/or institutes at which the study will take place and the sponsoring organisation, which specifies the nature of the services to be provided and the payment for those services.
- 12.10.4 The study must not constitute an inducement to prescribe, supply, administer, recommend, buy or sell any medicine, medical device, equipment or service.
- 12.10.5 Staff should declare involvement with sponsored research to the Company Secretary, including sponsorship by CW+
- 12.10.6 What should be declared:

- The Trust will retain written records of sponsorship of research, in line with the above principles and rules.
- Staff should declare:
- Name and role with the Trust;
- · Nature of their involvement in the sponsored research; Relevant dates; and
- Other relevant information (e.g. what, if any, benefit the sponsor derives from the sponsorship, action taken to mitigate against a conflict, details of any approvals given to depart from the terms of this policy).

12.11 Sponsored posts

- 12.11.1 External sponsorship of a post requires prior approval from the Trust.
- 12.11.2 Rolling sponsorship of posts should be avoided unless appropriate checkpoints are put in place to review and withdraw if appropriate.
- 12.11.3 Sponsorship of a post should only happen where there is written confirmation that the arrangements will have no effect on purchasing decisions or prescribing and dispensing habits. This should be audited for the duration of the sponsorship. Written agreements should detail the circumstances under which the Trust has the ability to exit sponsorship arrangements if conflicts of interest which cannot be managed arise.
- 12.11.4 Sponsored post holders must not promote or favour the sponsor's products, and information about alternative products and suppliers should be provided.
- 12.11.5 Sponsors should not have any undue influence over the duties of the post or have any preferential access to services, materials or intellectual property relating to or developed in connection with the sponsored posts.
- 12.11.6 What should be declared:
 - The Trust will retain written records of sponsorship of posts, in line with the above principles and rules; and
 - Staff should declare any other interests arising as a result of their association with the sponsor, in line with the content in the rest of this policy.

12.12 Clinical private practice

- 12.12.1 Clinical staff should declare all private practice on appointment, and/or any new private practice when it arises, including:
 - Where they practice (name of private facility);
 - What they practice (specialty, major procedures);
 - When they practice (identified sessions/time commitment).
- 12.12.2 Clinical staff should (unless existing contractual provisions require otherwise or unless emergency treatment for private patients is needed):
 - Seek prior approval of the Trust before taking up private practice;
 - Ensure that, where there would otherwise be a conflict or potential conflict of interest, NHS commitments take precedence over private work; and
 - Not accept direct or indirect financial incentives from private providers other than those allowed by Competition and Markets Authority guidelines.

- 12.12.3 Hospital Consultants should not initiate discussions about providing their Private Professional Services for NHS patients, nor should they ask other staff to initiate such discussions on their behalf.
- 12.12.4 What should be declared:
 - Staff name and their role with the Trust;
 - A description of the nature of the private practice (e.g. what, where and when staff practise, sessional activity, etc);
 - Relevant dates; and
 - Any other relevant information (e.g. action taken to mitigate against a conflict, details of any approvals given to depart from the terms of this policy).

12.13 Links with private companies

- 12.13.1 Private companies work with staff across a range of areas in developing treatments and medicines, for which staff may receive additional benefit, or payment towards;
 - Speaking at and chairing meetings
 - Training services
 - Advisory board meetings
 - Fees and expenses paid to HCPs
 - Sponsorship of attendance at meetings, which includes registration fees and the cost of accommodation and travel, both inside and outside the UK; and donations, grants and benefits in kind provided to HCOs.
 - 12.13.2 Where staff receive any payment or funding from the industry/affiliates this must be declared as a gift/hospitality so that the Trust remain transparent, and your line manager can ensure the payment does not conflict with your Trust role.

13 MANAGEMENT OF INTERESTS – ADVICE IN SPECIFIC CONTEXTS

13.1 Strategic decision making committees/groups

13.1.1 In common with other NHS bodies the Trust uses a variety of different groups to make key strategic decisions about things such as entering into (or renewing) large scale contracts; awarding grants; making procurement decisions; and/or selection of medicines, equipment, and devices.

The interests of those who are involved in these groups should be well known so that they can be managed effectively. For this Trust these groups are:

- Board of Directors and sub committees/groups of the Board with delegated authority for decision making (See SFIs and Scheme of Delegation);
- Council of Governors and Nominations Committee;
- 13.1.2 These groups should adopt the following principles:
 - Chairs should consider any known interests of members in advance, and begin each meeting by asking for declaration of relevant material interests;
 - Members should take personal responsibility for declaring material interests at the beginning of each meeting and as they arise;
 - Any new interests identified should be added to the Trust's register(s):

- The vice chair (or other non-conflicted member) should chair all or part of the meeting if the chair has an interest that may prejudice their judgement.
- 13.1.3 If a member has an actual or potential interest, the chair should consider the following approaches and ensure that the reason for the chosen action is documented in minutes or records:
 - Requiring the member to not attend the meeting;
 - Excluding the member from receiving meeting papers relating to their interest;
 - Excluding the member from all or part of the relevant discussion and decision;
 - Noting the nature and extent of the interest, but judging it appropriate to allow the member to remain and participate; and/or
 - Removing the member from the group or process altogether.
 - The default response should not always be to exclude members with interests, as this
 may have a detrimental effect on the quality of the decision being made. Good
 judgement is required to ensure proportionate management of risk.

13.2 Procurement

- 13.2.1 Procurement should be managed in an open and transparent manner and be compliant with procurement and other relevant law, to ensure there is no discrimination against or in favour of any provider. Procurement processes should be conducted in a manner that does not constitute anti-competitive behaviour which is against the interest of patients and the public.
- 13.2.2 Those involved in procurement exercises for and on behalf of the Trust should keep records that show a clear audit trail of how conflicts of interest have been identified and managed as part of procurement processes. At every stage of procurement, steps should be taken to identify and manage conflicts of interest to ensure and to protect the integrity of the process.

14 DEALING WITH BREACHES

- 14.1 There will be situations when interests will not be identified, declared or managed appropriately and effectively. This may happen innocently, accidentally, or because of the deliberate actions of staff or other organisations. For the purposes of this policy these situations are referred to as 'breaches'.
- 14.2 Any financial or other irregularities or impropriety which involve evidence or suspicion of fraud, bribery or corruption by any officer, will be reported to the Trust Counter Fraud Specialist in accordance with Standing Financial Instructions and in line with the Trust Counter Fraud Policy and Response Plan with a view to an appropriate investigation being conducted and potential prosecution being sought.

14.3 Identifying and reporting breaches

- 14.3.1 Staff who are aware about actual breaches of this policy, or who are concerned that there has been, or may be, a breach, should report these concerns to the Company Secretary.
- 14.3.2 To ensure that interests are effectively managed, staff are encouraged to speak up about actual or suspected breaches. Every individual has a responsibility to do this. For further information about how concerns should be raised see Raising Concerns Policy.

- 14.3.3 The Trust will investigate each reported breach according to its own specific facts and merits, and give relevant parties the opportunity to explain and clarify any relevant circumstances.
- 14.3.4 Following investigation the Trust will:
 - Decide if there has been or is potential for a breach and if so, what the severity of the breach is:
 - Assess whether further action is required in response, this is likely to involve any staff member involved and their line manager, as a minimum;
 - Consider who else inside and outside the Trust should be made aware:
 - Take appropriate action as set out in the next section.

14.4 Taking action in response to breaches

- 14.4.1 Action taken in response to breaches of this policy will be in accordance with the disciplinary procedures of the Trust and could involve Human Resources & Organisational Development, Local Counter Fraud Specialists, members of the management or executive teams and Trust auditors.
- 14.4.2 Sanctions should not be considered until the circumstances surrounding breaches have been properly investigated. However, if such investigations establish wrong-doing or fault
 - then the Trust can and will consider the range of possible sanctions that are available, in a manner which is proportionate to the breach.
- 14.4.3 Possible sanctions include employment law action against staff, which might include:
 - Informal action (such as reprimand, or signposting to training and/or guidance); and
 - Formal disciplinary action (such as formal warning, the requirement for additional training, re-arrangement of duties, re-deployment, demotion, or dismissal).
- 14.4.4 Possible sanctions include reporting incidents to the external parties described above for them to consider what further investigations or sanctions might be.
- 14.4.5 Possible sanctions include contractual action, such as exercise of remedies or sanctions against the body or staff which caused the breach.
- 14.4.6 Possible sanctions include other legal action, such as investigation and prosecution under fraud, bribery and corruption legislation.

14.5 Learning and transparency concerning breaches

14.5.1 Reports on breaches, the impact of these, and action taken will be considered by The Audit Committee at least annually. To ensure that lessons are learnt and management of interests can continually improve, anonymised information on breaches, the impact of these, and action taken will be prepared and as appropriate, will be made available for inspection by the public upon request.

15 COMMUNICATION

15.1 This policy will be made available on the Trust's Intranet and access to the online portal and associated forms can be requested from the Board Governance Manager.

- 15.2 This policy will be drawn to the attention of newly appointed staff through induction.

 Reminders to raise awareness on key aspects of the policy e.g. declaration of interest reminders, will be sent via email or otherwise annually by Board Governance Manager.
- 15.3 All new staff members & Governors will receive a copy of the policy and be briefed on the contents as part of their local induction arrangements.
- 15.4 The Trust will provide anti-bribery training to all staff on a regular basis to make them aware of this policy and guidelines, in particular of possible types of bribery, the risks of engaging in bribery activity, and how staff may report suspicion of bribery.
- 15.5 Executive Directors, other directors and divisional managers and equivalent Staff will have responsibility for implementation and for ensuring that all staff under their direction are made aware of this policy directly. Those departments involved in aspects of procurement will be asked to draw its content to the attention of suppliers and contractors to assure they have commensurate policies in place.
- 15.6 If staff are in any doubt about matters concerning this policy they should seek advice from their line manager in the first instance. Advice on this policy and its applicability should be directed to the Company Secretary.
- 15.7 Staff must not communicate with any member of the press, media or another Third Party about a suspected act of bribery as this may seriously damage the investigation and any subsequent actions to be taken. Anyone who wishes to raise such issues should discuss the matter with the Chief Financial Officer.

16 MONITORING OF THIS POLICY

- 16.1 The Board Governance Manager will hold the Declarations of Interest Register of the Board of Directors and the Council of Governors. The Company Secretary will provide advice to managers on request.
- 16.2 The Declarations of Interest Register which will include details of relevant offers that were accepted and declined.
- 16.4 The Board Governance Manager will monitor the Declarations of Interest Register for each individual and will notify the Company Secretary if there is a perception of excessive amounts.
- 16.5 The Declarations of Interest Register will be subject to an annual review. This review will be part of internal audit or counter fraud work plan.
- 16.6 The Chief Financial Officer will monitor the effectiveness and implementation of this policy via internal audit and relevant actions will be included in the counter fraud work plan which will include audits of control systems to provide assurance that they are effective in countering bribery and corruption. Any actions required will be monitored through the Audit Committee.
- 16.7 This policy does not form part of any employee's contract of employment and it may be amended at any time.

17 REVIEW

17.1 This policy will be reviewed every three years unless an earlier review is required. This will be led by the Company Secretary.

18 REFERENCES

18.1 This Policy has been prepared taking into account the following guidance:

Bribery Act 2010

Monitor Code of Governance

HSC 1998/231

A Code of Conduct for Private Practice – Recommended Standards of Practice for NHS Consultants

Managing Conflicts of Interest in the NHS: Guidance for staff and Organisations NHS England 2017

NHS Executive Guidance on the Ethical Standards of Commercial Sponsorship (November 2000)

The seven Principles of Public Life established by the Nolan Committee (the Nolan Principles)

Consultant Contract and Terms and Conditions for Consultants England (2003)

The Chartered Institute of Purchasing and Supply – Ethical Code

Code of Practice for the Pharmaceutical Industry 2016 edition (ABPI)

The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance (Monitor, July 2014)

Appendix A

Examples of Potential Conflict and how these should be dealt with:

- An equipment manufacturer offers to sponsor a clinical post in the Trust. This cannot be accepted if the clinician is required to recommend the sponsor's equipment/product over other clinically appropriate products or any other associated action e.g. withholding information about other suppliers. Sponsorship of this kind can only be considered if recommendation of the equipment (or other associated action) is not part of the agreement and this is clearly and unambiguously stated in writing by the manufacturer for example our sponsorship shall not require you and/or your Trust to recommend the use of our equipment.
- A pharmaceutical company offers a clinician starter packs at discounted price. This should be refused but should be declared in order to avoid any suspicion of impropriety and/or that subsequent prescribing of the product might be inappropriately linked to the offer of starter packs. All medicines under all circumstances must enter the Trust through the pharmacy department. It is appropriate for the pharmacy department to consider the use of discounted starter packs in order to make best use of NHS resources.
- A company offers to provide Training for Trust staff. Training by industry is only
 acceptable where it is unbiased and has mutual benefit, is evidence based and any
 hospitality provided is appropriate. Participants must assess whether: o they may be
 influenced unduly for example by providing access to contacts from which a company
 might benefit in the future.
 - o if the training is linked to a specific product that nothing in the arrangement shall require the Trust to recommend, order, purchase or use the product.
- A clinician wishes to bring a new drug produced by a company with which they have links onto the formulary. The Trust's use of medicines committee requires clinicians who submit applications for new drugs to be added to the formulary to declare their interests as part of the application process. In addition they are asked again to do this at the meeting at which the application is presented. Each committee member is also asked to declare their interests in any application being considered at the meeting. Additions to the formulary are based on clinical and cost effectiveness.

Appendix B Examples of bribery and corruption

The following is a non-exhaustive list of examples that may arise during the course of your employment or association with The Trust and which may raise concerns under various antibribery and anti-corruption laws.

If you encounter any of the following while working for The Trust, you must report them promptly to the Chief Financial Officer:

- you become aware that a third party engages in or has been accused of engaging in improper business practices;
- you learn that a third party has a reputation for paying bribes, or requiring that bribes are
 paid to them, or has a reputation for having a "special relationship" with foreign government
 officials;
- a third party insists on receiving a commission or fee payment before committing to sign up to a contract with us, or carrying out a government function or process for us;
- a third party requests payment in cash and/refuses to sign a formal commission or fee agreement, or to provide an invoice or receipt for a payment made;
- a third party request that payment is made to a country or geographic location different from where the third party resides or conducts business;
- a third party request and unexpected additional fee or commission to "facilitate" a service;
- a third party demands lavish entertainment or gifts before commencing or continuing contractual negotiations or provision of services;
- a third party request that a payment is made to "overlook" potential legal violations;
- a third party requests that you provide employment or some other advantage to a friend or relative;
- you receive an invoice from a third party that appears to be non-standard or customised;
- a third party insists on the use of side-letters or refuses to put agreed terms in writing;
- you notice that the Trust has been invoiced for a commission or fee payment that appears large given the service stated to have been provided;
- a third party request or require the use of an agent, intermediary, consultant, distributor, or supplier that is not typically used by or known to The Trust; or
- you are offered an unusually generous gift or lavish hospitality by a third party.

Appendix C Examples of what staff should not do

It is not acceptable for staff to:

- Give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality with the expectation or hope that a business advantage will be received, or to reward a business advantage already given;
- Accept a payment from a third party that the member of staff knows or suspects has been offered with the expectation that it will obtain a business advantage for them;
- Accept a gift or hospitality from a third party if the member of staff knows or suspects that it
 is offered or provided with an expectation that a business advantage will be provided by
 the Trust in return;
- Threaten or retaliate against another worker who has refused to commit a bribery offence or who has raised concerns under this policy;
- Engage in any activity that might lead to a breach of this policy.

Appendix D – Declaration of interests form (NB staff are expected to declare using the Declare online system - Chelsea and Westminster Hospital (mydeclarations.co.uk)

	Role	Description of Interest	Relevant Dates		Comments
Please see over for ir	nformation on how to po	pulate this form	From	То	
EXAMPLE: Mr John Smith	Procurement Officer	Indirect Interest:- Father is the major shareholder of XX Contractors	21/12/2016	ongoing	John Smith to be removed from any tenderin or procurement exercises that are open to XX contractors and any associated decision making systems and processes
specified on this fo	bmitted will be held by ormand to comply with t				est for personnel or other reasons
Information Act 200 I confirm that the in notified to Chelsea	of and published in reg offormation provided about and Westminster Hosp that if I do not make ful	018. 1998 . Information maisters that the Trust holds. eve is complete and correctital NHS Foundation Trust	ay be disclosed t. I acknowledg as soon as pro	d to third parties ge that any char acticable and n	nges in these declarations must be later than 28 days after the interest ternal disciplinary, or professional
Information Act 200 I confirm that the innotified to Chelsea arises. I am aware regulatory action m	of and published in reg nformation provided about and Westminster Hosp that if I do not make ful nay result.	018. 1998 . Information maisters that the Trust holds. eve is complete and correctital NHS Foundation Trust	ay be disclosed t. I acknowledg as soon as pra arations then c	d to third parties ge that any char acticable and n sivil, criminal, in	s in accordance with the Freedom of nges in these declarations must be later than 28 days after the interest ternal disciplinary, or professional
Information Act 200 I confirm that the innotified to Chelsea arises. I am aware regulatory action m	of and published in reg offormation provided about and Westminster Hosp that if I do not make full hay result.	018. 1998. Information maisters that the Trust holds. eve is complete and correctital NHS Foundation Trust I, accurate and timely declar	ay be disclosed t. I acknowledg as soon as pra arations then c	d to third parties ge that any char acticable and n sivil, criminal, in	s in accordance with the Freedom of nges in these declarations must be later than 28 days after the interest ternal disciplinary, or professional
Information Act 200 I confirm that the innotified to Chelsea arises. I am aware regulatory action m I do / do not [deletate of the consent is NOT general consent is not consent in not co	of and published in regretory and Westminster Hosp that if I do not make ful hay result. te as applicable] give make given please give	018. 1998. Information maisters that the Trust holds. eve is complete and correctital NHS Foundation Trust I, accurate and timely declar	ay be disclosed t. I acknowledg as soon as pra arations then c	d to third parties ge that any char acticable and n sivil, criminal, in	s in accordance with the Freedom of nges in these declarations must be later than 28 days after the interest ternal disciplinary, or professional

Please return this form to chelwest.declarations@nhs.net

Name and Role:	Insert your name and your position/role in relation to the Organisation you are making the return to
Description of	Provide a description of the interest that is being declared. This should contain enough information to be meaningful
Interest:	(e.g. detailing the supplier of any gifts, hospitality, sponsorship, etc). That is, the information provided should enable
	a reasonable person with no prior knowledge should be able to read this and understand the nature of the interest.
	Types of interest:
	Financial interests - This is where an individual may get direct financial benefits from the consequences of a
	decision they are involved in making
	Non-financial professional interests - This is where an individual may obtain a non-financial professional benefit
	from the consequences of a decision they are involved in making, such as increasing their professional reputation of
	status or promoting their professional career
	Non-financial personal interests - This is where an individual may benefit personally in ways which are not direct
	linked to their professional career and do not give rise to a direct financial benefit, because of decisions they are
	involved in making in their professional career
	Indirect interests - This is where an individual has a close association with another individual who has a financial
	interest, a non-financial professional interest or a non-financial personal interest who would stand to benefit from a
	decision they are involved in making
	A benefit may arise from both a gain or avoidance of a loss.
Relevant Dates:	Detail here when the interest arose and, if relevant, when it ceased

Comments:	This field should detail any action taken to manage an actual or potential conflict of interest. It might also detail any	1
	approvals or permissions to adopt certain course of action	

Appendix D – Declaration of Gifts and Hospitality form (staff should use the Trust's online portal - Chelsea and Westminster Hospital (mydeclarations.co.uk)

	GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY DECLARATION FORM					
	Name	Role	Nature of Gift/Hospitality	Relevant Dates		Comments
F	l Please see over for i	information on how to po		From	То	
	EXAMPLE: Mr John Smith	Staff Nurse – XX Ward	Travel costs for train ticket to conference at which I was presenting was paid for by XX Events Limited. Value of tickets was £60.00	21/12/2016	21/12/2016	Accepted as legitimate business and within approved value levels.
		Staff Nurse – XX Ward	Patient gave me a £100 voucher to thank me for caring for her whilst she was in hospital	15/10/21	-	Voucher declined and returned to patient as policy does not permit the acceptance of vouchers or cash of any value

The information submitted will be held by Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for personnel or other reasons specified on this form and to comply with the organisation's policies. This information may be held in both manual and electronic form in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998. Information may be disclosed to third parties in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and published in registers that the Trust holds.

	I confirm that the information provided above is complete and correct. I acknowledge that any changes in these declarations must be notified to Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation Trust as soon as practicable and no later than 28 days after the interest arises. I am aware that if I do not make full, accurate and timely declarations then civil, criminal, internal disciplinary, or professional							
	regulatory action mag		,	,	•	. , ,		
	I do / do not [delete	as applicable) give my	consent for this information	on to published on regi	etare that	the Truet holds		
	If consent is NOT give			in to published on regi	sicis iliai	the Trust Holds.		
	reasons:	ren piease give						
	Signed: Manager			Date	•			
	Signed: Manager			Date				
	Employee			Date	•			
Р	Please return this form to chelwest.declarations@nhs.net							

Related Party Transaction Declaration Form

Name	
Title	
	not aware of any related party transactions that need to be disclosed in the Trust's or the year ended 31 March. I therefore am declaring a "nil" return

Name		
Title		
Title	0	I declare that I am aware of any related party transactions that need to be disclosed in the Trust's Annual Accounts for the year ending 31 March. Further details are given below:-

Tender No	
Tender Description	
Date	

This declaration must be made even if you have made a standard annual declaration through the Trusts central Declaration of Interest Register

Any Staff / individual involved in a Procurement Process is required to complete this form and return to the Procurement Department or the Procurement lead for the Project.

The definition of staff in this context includes: permanent Trust staff, temporary/interim staff, specialist external contractors and individuals from other public sector bodies engaged to support specific procurement projects

The Trust is required to ensure that any procurement exercise is undertaken in ways that ensures:

- **Transparency** Procurement activities should be fair and open.
- Objectivity Key decisions must be based on documented objective data and criteria as part of the procurement process.
- Non-discrimination The procurement process must not discriminate between potential tenderers.

In support of the above, the Trust requires that any individual who has an interest (financial or otherwise, either directly or through their employing organisation or members of their family or close friends) in the outcome of any tendering exercise, declare such interest.

Examples include:

• Having a financial interest (e.g. holding shares or options) in a potential tendering organisation or any entity/organisation involved in any tendering consortium,

- Having a financial or any other personal interest in the outcome of the evaluation of any tender evaluation process;
- Being employed by (as staff member or volunteer) or providing services to any potential tendering organisation;
- Being a member of a potential tendering organisation's management/executive board;
- Receiving any kind of monetary payment or non-monetary gift or incentive (including hospitality) from any potential tendering organisation;
- Having a close member of your family (which term includes unmarried partners) or personal friends who falls into any of the categories outlined above;
- Having any other close relationship (current or historical) with any potential tenderer.

The above is a non-exhaustive list of examples, and it is **your** responsibility to ensure that any and all potential conflicts – whether or not of the type listed out above – are disclosed to the Trust in writing prior to you being involved in the Procurement Process.

Individuals will be excluded from the procurement process where the identified conflict is in the Trust's opinion, material and cannot be mitigated.

Any changes to Conflict of Interests must be declared within 28 days of the new conflict occurring.

DECLARATION

I do not have any conflicts of interest that prevent my full and unprejudiced participation in in the procurement process.

OR

I <u>do have</u> a conflict of interest that may prevent my full and unprejudiced participation in the procurement process. The nature of this conflict of interest is described below

Natu	ure of Interest	Detail (Organisation name, nature of business, address	Start/End dates

Confidentiality Undertakings

"Procurement exercise" encompasses any formal and informal meetings, associated discussions, meeting preparation and follow up or any other activity related to the procurement exercise.

"Information" means all information, documentation, knowledge, facts, data and other matters of which is acquired either directly or indirectly, as a result of the evaluation activities of any supplier Tender submissions or tender interviews/presentations etc.

I agree:

- 1. To treat all information and documents under conditions of strict confidentiality
- 2. Not to disclose, make copies of, or discuss any received information with any person who is not a member of the Tender Evaluation Panel.
- 3. Not to use (or authorise any other person to use) information and documents other than for the purpose of my work in connection with the procurement process
- 4. To return documents to the Procurement Department as soon as the evaluation process is complete
- 5. Any records or notes made by me relating to information or documents shall be treated as confidential documents

Unless otherwise agreed with the Procurement Department, and subject to relevant legislation, this undertaking applies until the end of the contract, including any contract extensions.

This undertaking shall not apply to any document or information that becomes public knowledge otherwise than as a result of a breach of any of the above undertakings.

I also declare that I will inform the Procurement Department immediately, should my circumstances change in any way that effects this declaration.

Name:	
Job Title:	
Department:	
Sign:	
Date:	

Internal use only:

- Document to be issued for electronic sign off and responses held on record
- Procurement Register of conflict of interests to be issued monthly to Trust Board Secretary for review